
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, 
audio-recorded, photographed or reported 
electronically by the use of social media by anyone 
attending.  This does not apply to any part of the 
meeting that is held in private session. 

Contact: 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk 

 
 

22 July 2024 
 

 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be held on Tuesday 30 July 2024 at 7.30 
pm in the Council Chamber 
  

 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   APOLOGIES & SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

2.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 12th March 2024 
(previously circulated). 
 

3.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 7  
 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on the Agenda. 
 

5.   ACTION STATUS REPORT (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

6.   COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2024/25 (Pages 7 - 28) 
 

 The pro-forma sets out a draft of the Committee’s work programme for comment.  
The work programme enables forward planning of items to be considered to take 
place. 
 

Public Document Pack



7.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 
 
 

8.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Committee is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for Item 9 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100(A)(3) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
 

PART II - PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 
 

9.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors G.Michaelides 

L.Crofton 
T.Rowse 
T.Mitchinson 
L.Musk 
A.Nix 
 

D.Panter 
B.Sarson (Vice-Chairman) 
L.Chesterman (Vice-
Chairman) 
K.Gardner 
S.Asare 
D.Jones (Chairman) 
 

 Senior Leadership Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Democratic 
Services, Governance Services on  or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


Action Status Summary 

 

This table summarises the actions agreed by the committee, and recommendations made to Cabinet, 

and the current implementation status.  

July 2023   

Terms of 
Reference and 
Action Plan 
 

Agreed  Implemented 

   

September 2023   

Housing 
Maintenance 
(single report) 
 

No actions N/A 

Cyber Security 
(single report) 

No actions N/A 

   

December 2023   

Budget (Task and 
Finish - update) 

That information on 
community assets get 
reported to the new 
Community Panel 
 

Implemented from 2024/25 

Street Scene 
(Task and Finish 
– Final) 

That the collection of 
cardboard presented beside 
the bin is implemented. 
 
That the bring bank service is 
to be reviewed and a change 
to the service to be 
implemented. Officers to 
commence the review of the 
Bring Bank service and plan 
for implementation of the 
change by 01/04/2024 
 
That the Council investigates 
options for entering a 12 
month pilot contract with an 
external provider for 
environmental enforcement. 
Officers to engage with 
Procurement to commence 
soft market testing to 
establish what services are 
available. 

Implemented in December 
2023 
 
 
The review has been completed 
and a note will be circulated on 
the member information hub, 
with the new bring bank service 
commencing in August.  
 
 
 
 
Included in the budget for 
2024/25. This has been through 
the procurement process and 
the contract has been awarded 
using Executive Member 
Decision. The contract will go 
live in September 2024. 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 
That the Council continue to 
collect paper separately to 
dry mixed recycling as this 
provides a greater income to 
the Council than collecting it 
with other recyclables. 
Officers to investigate other 
options for receptacles to 
collect paper. 
 
That a communications 
campaign be developed that 
seeks to change behaviour to 
encourage civic pride for the 
borough and enhanced 
education and publicity about 
matters such as waste 
disposal, recycling and 
tackling of illegal waste 
dumping including 
enforcement. 
 
That a briefing note is 
distributed to members 
through the information hub 
on the responsibility for verge 
protection across the 
borough.  
 
Officers to investigate 
whether cage days could be 
sponsored (perhaps through 
social value actions) by our 
Corporate contractors (such 
as Urbaser). 
 
 
That a Cabinet Streetscene 
Panel is introduced to provide 
regular oversight on the 
performance of the 
outsourced waste and 
cleansing contract 
 

 
Investigations are underway 
and this will be considered as 
part of the 2025/26 budget 
setting process. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This will commence alongside 
the communications around the 
new civil enforcement contract, 
which goes live in September 
2024.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Not yet complete, this will be 
completed by September 2024 
and placed on the information 
hub.  
 
 
 
A number of community days 
have been held over the last 12 
months, and cage days have 
formed part of this. These have 
been sponsored by contractors 
within the Housing Repairs and 
Maintenance teams.  
 
Cabinet determined that an 
annual report should go to  
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee setting out the 
recommendations  
agreed by Cabinet and Council 
to ensure progress is recorded 
rather than setting up an 
additional Cabinet Panel.  
 
 

   

Page 4



January 2024   

Budget (Task and 
Finish – Final) 

No Actions N/A 

   

March 2024   

Crime and 
Disorder (Single 
report) 

No Actions N/A 

Health (Single 
Report) 

  

Recruitment and 
Retention (Task 
and Finish – 
Final) 

A formal buddy system 
should be implemented to 
ensure all new starers are 
supported and settled into 
their role 
 
The ‘top 50 benefits of 
working with council’ should 
be added to website to 
emphasise to prospective 
employees 
 
Staff surveys should resume 
on regular basis and to be 
implemented by HR and 
overseen by ED for Finance 
and Transformation 
 

This has been incorporated into 
the new performance 
management framework and 
induction process due to be 
launched in September 2024 
 
Implemented 
 
 
 
 
 
A number of staff surveys had 
been completed prior to the 
task and finish panel. Planning 
is underway for further surveys. 
It has been agreed to use 
shorter and more regular pulse 
surveys, each survey themed 
around particular aspects. 
These will be launched in 
September 2024. 
 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Workshop Notes 

 
A presentation was provided by the Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) on the roles and 
responsibilities of the committee, the scoring approach to topics and an introduction to the workshop. An 
overview of topics covered by the committee in recent years was also provided. 

 

The Executive Director (Finance and Transformation), Executive Director (Place) and the Executive Director 
(Resident Services and Climate Change) each gave an overview of services within their remit. The outlined the 
key priorities for these services over the coming year to provide context to areas the committee may wish to 
consider, and made some suggestions based around key topics discussed at full council and other committees 
on areas which the committee may have wished to cover. These included: 

 

 Housing Repairs and Maintenance – Access issues  

 Empty Homes – Council powers and bringing empty homes back into use 

 Leaseholders – Support and advice available, in relation to service charges 

 Performance of cultural facilities  

 Weltech – Consideration to support provided in a challenging economy 

 Debt management – Reporting of debt and support provided to residents 

 

The committee then considered the topics it would like to be scored, and discussed topics that had been raised 
by residents and other Councillors. The topics that were agreed upon for scoring were: 

 

 Effectiveness of Overview and Scrutiny 

 Traffic Regulation Orders 

 Houses of multiple occupation / Supplementary planning document 

 Youth violence 

 Consultations 

 Grass cutting 

 Communal area maintenance 

 

It was noted the following topics would also be brought as standard items for the year: 

 

 Budget Setting Task and Finish Panel 

 Crime and Disorder 

 Health 

 Action progress report (new annual item reporting on the actions agreed over the previous years OSC) 

 

The remainder of this pack sets out the scoring, terms of reference and forward plan for the Committees 
consideration.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Scrutiny Scoring Matrix 
 

 
Topic/area of interest: Effectiveness of Overview and Scrutiny 

 
 
 

 Numerical score  

Public Interest 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
1 

Risk to Council or service delivery 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Alignment to Corporate Priorities 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Financial Value 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
1 

Issue of concern for partners? 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Will the outcome of scrutiny review result in any 
meaningful impact on the Council service?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Will the outcome of scrutiny result in any benefit for 
a significant part of the community / partners / 
stakeholders or the Council?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
 

2 

 
 

Total Score 
 

13 
 

 

Decision: 

 

The committee recognised the important role the committee plays in the governance and policy making 
process. In 2020, the overview and scrutiny arrangements were amended at the council, and the 
committee would like to consider whether the arrangements are effective. In addition, it was agreed that 
to support scrutiny an annual report should be presented to the first formal meeting each year, on action 
status of recommendations from the previous year. 

 

Based on the scoring it is recommended that single report be presented to the committee from officers 

to cover the following: 

 The legal framework (what is the statutory purpose of OSC);  

 A summary of all topics covered since 2020, including recommendations and actions; 

 A summary of evidence used  

 A summary of the scoring methodology; and, 

 Details of where additional information is available for the committee; 

 

The objectives expected through this scrutiny are: 

 To consider whether all statutory topics have been covered by the committee annually; 

 To consider whether the scoring methodology is working as expected; 

 To consider whether committee members are actively utilising in year data (such as performance 
data) to inform the programme of work; and,  

 To consider whether the committee has made recommendations that have been implemented 
and that have had an impact. 
 

 

 

 

Page 8



 
 

 

Scrutiny Scoring Matrix 
 

 

Topic/area of interest: Traffic Regulation Order (TRO’s) / Parking Permits  

 
 
 

 Numerical score  

Public Interest 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Risk to Council or service delivery 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Alignment to Corporate Priorities 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Financial Value 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

 

Issue of concern for partners? 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Will the outcome of scrutiny review result in any 
meaningful impact on the Council service?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Will the outcome of scrutiny result in any benefit for 
a significant part of the community / partners / 
stakeholders or the Council?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

 
 

Total Score 
 

15 
 

 

Decision: 

 

The committee discussed the councils parking permit policy, and enforcement of parking permits. A 
desire was expressed to consider the impact of parking permits on local facilities, businesses, health 
services and residents. There were also concerns raised on the impact houses in multiple occupation 
have where permit schemes are in place. Verge protection was also raised, but this was considered last 
year in the environment task and finish panel.  

 

This topic has scored at the high range, and would warrant a task and finish panel, covering:  

 the costs and income associated with controlled parking zones (CPZs) / parking permits; 

 the policy approach for selection and consultation on CPZs; 

 the legal framework and requirements; 

 the enforcement of controlled parking zones; and, 

 where available, information on the impacts, and mitigating factors, of controlled parking zones. 
 

The objectives expected through this scrutiny are: 

 to understand if the use of controlled parking zones has the desired effects; 

 to consider if there are mitigating actions the council can put in place for any negative effects 
identified from the use of controlled parking zones;  

 to consider if the councils policy and procedure is fit for purpose; and  

 to consider if there are any recommendations on the enforcement of CPZs.  
 
 

 

 

Page 9



 
 

 

 

 

 

Ta
sk 
& 

Fin
ish 
Ter
ms 
of 

Ref
ere
nc
e 

 

Scrutiny Review Title Implementation of Traffic Regulation Orders 

Scoring Matrix Result 15 

T&F Panel Members  

Co-opted Members  

Portfolio Holder (s) Councillor Sandreni Bonfante 

Officers Chris Barnes, Geoff Sampson, Eliska Robova 

Key Stakeholders  

Background Issue to review - the rational for scrutinising this issue 

The committee recognised that parking restrictions are a powerful tool, used to ensure better 
parking outcomes for our residents. Used effectively, they enable residents and their visitors to 
access parking close to their property, as well as ensure there are convenient spaces for 
people to park in our Town Centres.  

 

The committee also recognised that effective enforcement of new regulations allows the 
Council to control the operation of parking, to address issues and challenges that arise, such 
as commuter or business parking affecting the availability of on-road spaces for residents.  

 

The committee acknowledged that the Council always follows consultation procedures before 
introducing new parking measures; this is overseen by a democratically accountable cross-
party Cabinet Panel. However, Members have less oversight to how parking controls are 
reviewed and assessed following implementation. 

 

 

Scrutiny Aims and Objectives 

 to understand if the use of controlled parking zones has the desired effects; 

 to consider if there are mitigating actions the council can put in place for any negative 
effects identified from the use of controlled parking zones;  

Page 10



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 to consider if the councils policy and procedure is fit for purpose; and  

 to consider if there are any recommendations on the enforcement of CPZs.  
 

Review of Implications/Impacts/Risks 

Parking is an emotive topic – negative experiences can impact businesses and residents 
satisfaction levels, and lead to complaints 

If parking controls are not effective, they risk undermining the local economy and resident 
satisfaction, as well as the Council’s reputation 

 

Page 11



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Methodology for Gathering Evidence 

 Examples of case studies of TRO’s that have been introduced  

 Discussion around the assessment of the 6-month review period 

 Presentation of data on how the parking work programme is formulated 

 Examples of consultation responses and how the Council has responded to them, 
either by introducing or not introducing parking restrictions 

 Review of enforcement arrangements in place, and numbers of tickets issued 

 Explanation of the legal framework governing parking restrictions  

 Income and expenditure information for TROs and parking enforcement  
 

Proposed time scales and meeting frequency (aim for 2 to 3 moths) 

Start date November 2024 

Frequency of Meetings 6 weekly 

End Date February 2025 

Reporting back to OSC/Recommendations to Cabinet 

Date of OSC March 2025 

Date of Cabinet April 2025 

Page 12



 
 

-Scrutiny Scoring Matrix 
 

 
Topic/area of interest: Houses of multiple occupation and the supplementary planning document 

 
 
 

 Numerical score  

Public Interest 
Low 

1 
medium 

2 
high 

3 
 

2 

Risk to Council or service delivery 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Alignment to Corporate Priorities 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Financial Value 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
1 

Issue of concern for partners? 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Will the outcome of scrutiny review result in any 
meaningful impact on the Council service?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Will the outcome of scrutiny result in any benefit for 
a significant part of the community / partners / 
stakeholders or the Council?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
 

2 

 
 

Total Score 
 

14 
 

 

Decision: 

The committee discussed the impact houses of multiple occupation (HMOs) can have on the local 
community (such as on parking, fly tipping and waste issues). A discussion was held on the effectiveness 
of the supplementary planning document, although it was also recognised some HMOs were created 
through permitted development.  

The committee expressed a desire to understand how enforcement of HMOs took place, and whether 
there are processes and procedures in place to identify ‘unofficial’ HMOs.  

Whilst this topic has scored on the middle range, which suggest providing a single report for scrutiny. 
The breadth of the topic is quite wide, So a single report will be produced to provide: 

 the planning framework and level of influence the council has over the development/conversion 
to HMOs; 

 the enforcement powers the council has for HMOs; 

 an overview of the private accredited landlord scheme; and, 

 the procedures in place for identifying HMOs, and numbers or registered landlords. 
 

The objectives expected through this scrutiny are: 

 to consider if the councils current supplementary planning document on HMOs is fit for purpose; 

 to consider if there are any recommendations around the identification, monitoring and 
enforcement of HMOs.  

 to consider if a more detailed delve into HMOS should be recommended for the 2025/26 OSC 
work programme 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



 
 

 

 

 

Scrutiny Scoring Matrix 
 

 

Topic/area of interest: Youth Violence (Youth facilities/activities) 

 
 
Public Interest + Strategic Value + Risk + Corporate Priorities + Financial Value   =   Scrutiny Value Score 

 Numerical score  

Public Interest 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Risk to Council or service delivery 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Alignment to Corporate Priorities 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Financial Value 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Issue of concern for partners? 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Will the outcome of scrutiny review result in any 
meaningful impact on the Council service?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Will the outcome of scrutiny result in any benefit for 
a significant part of the community / partners / 
stakeholders or the Council?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
 

2 

 
 

Total Score 
 

18 
 

 

Decision: 

 

Youth violence was debated at the committee workshop.  It is recognised this is not a direct responsibility 
of the Council, although the Council does play a key role in overall community safety with the community 
safety partnership, anti-social behaviour activities and in the provision of some youth facilities such as 
campus west.  

 

Based on the scoring it is recommended a task and finish panel be set up, to cover: 

 

 The definition of youth violence and the level of youth violence in the borough  

 The roles and responsibilities of the council and other partners 

 The activities undertaken by the council to reduce and/or prevent youth violence 
 

The objectives expected are: 

 to understand what the community safety partnership are doing towards youth crime and 
violence; and, 

 to feed into partners and make recommendations 

 to consider whether there are additional activities the council can do to support the reduction of 
youth violence.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



 
 

 

 

 

 

Task & Finish Terms of Reference 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scrutiny Review Title Youth Violence (Youth facilities/activities) 

Scoring Matrix Result 18 

T&F Panel Members  

Co-opted Members  

Portfolio Holder (s) Councillor Sandreni Bonfante 

Officers Sue McDaid, Emma Walker 

Key Stakeholders  

Background Issue to review - the rational for scrutinising this issue 

 

Youth violence was debated at the committee workshop.  It is recognised this is not a direct 
responsibility of the Council, although the Council does play a key role in overall community safety with 
the community safety partnership, anti-social behaviour activities and in the provision of some youth 
facilities such as campus west.  

 

 

Scrutiny Aims and Objectives 

 

 

The objectives expected through this scrutiny are to determine if recommendations could be made: 

• to understand the definition for and levels of youth violence in the borough; 

• to understand what the community safety partnership are doing towards youth crime and 
violence;  

• to feed into partners and make recommendations; and, 

• to consider whether there are additional activities the council can do to support the reduction of 
youth violence.  

 

Review of Implications/Impacts/Risks 

 

Failure to adequately work together to reduce youth violence can impact on community safety.  

 

Page 15



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Methodology for Gathering Evidence 

 Presentation of information and questioning of partners including Hertfordshire Police 
and Hertfordshire County Council 

 Presentations from officers on council activities and the community safety partnership 

 Presentation of youth provision from other areas / councils / community groups  
 

Proposed time scales and meeting frequency (aim for 2 to 3 moths) 

Start date November 2024 

Frequency of Meetings 6 weekly 

End Date February 2025 

Reporting back to OSC/Recommendations to Cabinet 

Date of OSC March 2025 

Date of Cabinet April 2025 

Page 16



 
 

Scrutiny Scoring Matrix 
 

 
Topic/area of interest: Consultations 

 
 
Public Interest + Strategic Value + Risk + Corporate Priorities + Financial Value   =   Scrutiny Value Score 

 Numerical score  

Public Interest 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Risk to Council or service delivery 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Alignment to Corporate Priorities 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Financial Value 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
1 

Issue of concern for partners? 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
1 

Will the outcome of scrutiny review result in any 
meaningful impact on the Council service?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Will the outcome of scrutiny result in any benefit for 
a significant part of the community / partners / 
stakeholders or the Council?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
 

2 

 
 

Total Score 
 

14 
 

 

Decision: 

 

The committee discussed consultations and the poor response rate on consultations for parking and 
other services, and considered exploring what else could be done to increase uptake on responses. 

 

This topic was added to the customer services cross party group in 2023, and some high level actions 
were developed for this years work programme. Based on the scoring, and the work of the cross party 
group, it is recommended that a single report be presented to the committee later in the year to provide 

an opportunity for the committee to scrutinise and input into work of the cross party group.  

 

The objectives expected are: 

 to understand where response rates are considered to be statistically low; and, 

 to consider how response rates could be improved in areas they are considered to be low.  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



 
 

 

Scrutiny Scoring Matrix 
 

 

Topic/area of interest: Grass Cutting / Grounds Maintenance Contract    

 
 
Public Interest + Strategic Value + Risk + Corporate Priorities + Financial Value   =   Scrutiny Value Score 

 Numerical score  

Public Interest 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Risk to Council or service delivery 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Alignment to Corporate Priorities 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Financial Value 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Issue of concern for partners? 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Will the outcome of scrutiny review result in any 
meaningful impact on the Council service?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Will the outcome of scrutiny result in any benefit for 
a significant part of the community / partners / 
stakeholders or the Council?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
 

3 

 
 

Total Score 
 

20 
 

 

Decision: 

 

A number of matters were discussed regarding grass cutting, including the contract performance, the 
introduction of wild areas / more wild flowers and the communication of grass cutting schedules. The 
committee acknowledged the level of complaints/comments from residents in this area. There is a 
perception that performance is reducing which members would like to explore. A debate was also held 
on whether the council should collect grass - this would have significant cost implications but members 
would like to explore whether HCC would contribute to this to reduce costs around blocked drainage. 

 

A task and finish panel will be set up to cover: 

 the performance of the grounds maintenance contract;   

 understanding of how the contract compares to previous contracts, and prestige areas; 

 understanding the impacts of changing weather patterns having an impact on grass cutting: 

 an overview of the communications arrangements around grass cutting; 

 considering implications and benefits of using wild flower areas / no mow areas; and, 

 exploring the cost of grass collection and whether HCC will contribute to these costs 

The objectives expected through this scrutiny are to determine if recommendations could be made: 

 to improve public perception in relation to grass cutting; 

 to improve biodiversity; and 

 to improve the level of service using financial contributions from HCC 
 
 

 

Page 18



 
 

 

 

Task & Finish Terms of Reference 
 

 

 
 

 

Scrutiny Review Title Grounds Maintenance 

Page 19



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scoring Matrix Result 20 

T&F Panel Members  

Co-opted Members  

Portfolio Holder (s) Councillor Sandreni Bonfante 

Officers Sue McDaid, Emma Walker, Paul Harris 

Key Stakeholders  

Background Issue to review - the rational for scrutinising this issue 

 

The Committee discussed regarding grass cutting, including the contract performance, the introduction 
of wild areas / more wild flowers and the communication of grass cutting schedules. 

 

The committee acknowledged the level of complaints/comments from residents in this area.  

 

There is a perception that performance is reducing which members would like to explore. A debate was 
also held on whether the council should collect grass - this would have significant cost implications but 
members would like to explore whether HCC would contribute to this to reduce costs around blocked 
drainage. 

 

Due to potential financial implications, this T&F panel is recommended to finish by November 2024 to 
ensure any cost implications can be considered by Cabinet in December 2024 as part of the budget 
setting process.  

 

 

Scrutiny Aims and Objectives 

 

The objectives expected through this scrutiny are to determine if recommendations could be made: 

• to improve public perception in relation to grass cutting; 

• to improve performance of the grass cutting contract; 

• to improve biodiversity; and 

• to improve the level of service using financial contributions from HCC 

 

Review of Implications/Impacts/Risks 

 

Failure to adequately undertake grass cutting can have issues in relation to safety (sight lines for 

vehicles), wellbeing (ability for public to utilise parks and open spaces) and reputational damage.  

 

Methodology for Gathering Evidence 

Page 20



 
 

 

 

  

 Presentation from and opportunity to question the contractor, including Information on 
contractor performance (contract monitoring data);  information relating to weather 
patterns and changes over time (nationally published data); and, future plans 

 Information on contract specifications including areas such as number of cuts and 
specified prestige areas (contract data) 

 Considering areas suitable for wild flowering / no mow areas, and impacts on 
biodiversity and maintenance requirements  

 Cost of grass collection (contractor quote) and contact with HCC regarding cost 
sharing (officers) 

 Complaints data 
 

Proposed time scales and meeting frequency (aim for 2 to 3 moths) 

Start date August 2024 

Frequency of Meetings 6 Weekly 

End Date October 2024 

Reporting back to OSC/Recommendations to Cabinet 

Date of OSC November 2024 

Date of Cabinet December 2024 

Page 21



 
 

Scrutiny Scoring Matrix 
 

 
Topic/area of interest: Social Housing – Communal area maintenance 

 
 
Public Interest + Strategic Value + Risk + Corporate Priorities + Financial Value   =   Scrutiny Value Score 

 Numerical score  

Public Interest 
Low 

1 
medium 

2 
high 

3 
 

2 

Risk to Council or service delivery 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Alignment to Corporate Priorities 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Financial Value 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Issue of concern for partners? 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
2 

Will the outcome of scrutiny review result in any 
meaningful impact on the Council service?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
3 

Will the outcome of scrutiny result in any benefit for 
a significant part of the community / partners / 
stakeholders or the Council?  

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 
 

2 

 
 

Total Score 
 

17 
 

 

Decision: 

 

Members discussed complaints they had been receiving from tenants regarding the maintenance of 
communal areas (including cleaning, decorating and estates). Any recommendations here may have an 
impact on leaseholders so it is important they are considered through the recommendations.  

 

A task and finish panel will be set up to cover: 

 providing details around the councils cleaning and maintenance schedules and levels of service   

 providing an overview of service charges (where are they charged, what do they include) 

 providing details of chargeable services to leaseholders 

The objectives expected through this scrutiny are to determine if recommendations could be made: 

 to improve maintenance of communal areas, where deemed required; 

 to improve cleaning of communal areas, where deemed required; and, 

 to consider service charges to tenants for such services 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



 
 

 

Task & Finish Terms of Reference 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scrutiny Review Title Social Housing - Communal Area Maintenance 

Scoring Matrix Result 17 

Page 23



 
 

 

T&F Panel Members  

Co-opted Members  

Portfolio Holder (s) Councillor Gemma Moore 

Officers Sue McDaid, Janice White, Simon Kiff 

Key Stakeholders  

Background Issue to review - the rational for scrutinising this issue 

 

Members discussed complaints they had been receiving from tenants regarding the maintenance of 
communal areas (including cleaning, decorating and estates). This would include both internal and 
external communal areas.  

 

The committee were keen to understand what level of provision was already in place for maintenance, 
and how this could be improved.  

 

Any recommendations here may have an impact on leaseholders so it is important they are considered 
through the recommendations.  

 

 

Scrutiny Aims and Objectives 

 

The objectives expected through this scrutiny are to determine if recommendations could be made: 

 to improve maintenance of communal areas, where deemed required; 

 to improve cleaning of communal areas, where deemed required; and, 

 to consider service charges to tenants for such services 
 

Review of Implications/Impacts/Risks 

 

Failure to adequately undertake adequate maintenance of communal areas can have reputational 
damage to the council, lead to maladministration findings by the ombudsman and social housing 
regulators, and impact on the quality of homes and communal areas for tenants and leaseholders.   

 

Methodology for Gathering Evidence 

 Information on existing maintenance regimes (officers) 

 Information on cyclical decoration programmes (officers and contractor information) 

 Information on cleaning arrangements  (officers) 

 Information on existing service charges, and ability to service charge, and leaseholder 
charges 

 Feedback from tenants (including tenants panel) 
 

Proposed time scales and meeting frequency (aim for 2 to 3 moths) 

Start date October 2024 

Frequency of Meetings 6 Weekly 

End Date December 2024 

Reporting back to OSC/Recommendations to Cabinet 

Page 24



 
 

 Date of OSC January 2025 

Date of Cabinet February 2025 

Page 25



 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE July 2024  

WORK PROGRAMME 2024/25 
 

Meeting Date Report Topic What is the Outcome or Output required? 

 
30 July 2024 

 
Scrutiny action status implementation 
update 
 
Workplan 

 
 

 
Report 
 
 
Report 

 
25 September 2024 

 
Effectiveness of Overview and Scrutiny 
 
Grass Cutting / Grounds Maintenance 
Contract (update) 
 
Houses of Multiple Occupation 
 

 
Report 
 
Verbal update from the Chair 
 

 
Report 

 
20 November 2024 

 
Budget Setting (update) 
 
Grass Cutting / Grounds Maintenance 
Contract (final) 
 
Social Housing – Communal Area 
Maintenance (update) 

 
Annual Ombudsman Reports 
 
Consultations 

 
 
 

 
Verbal update from the Chair 
 
Final report and recommendations of the T&F Panel 

 
 
Verbal update from the Chair 
 
 
Report 
 
Report 

P
age 26



 
 

 
9 January 2025 

 
Social Housing – Communal Area 
Maintenance (final) 

 
Budget Setting (final) 
 

 
Final report and recommendations of the T&F Panel 
 

 
Final report and recommendations of the T&F Panel 
 

Review of provision of health services in 
the borough * 
 
Youth Violence (update) 
 
Parking Permits (update) 

To discuss annual report and feedback any 
recommendations  
 
Verbal update from the Chair 
 
Verbal update from the Chair 
 

 
18 March 2025 

 
Review of provision of the discharge of 
crime and disorder services in borough* 
 
Youth Violence (final) 
 
Parking Permits (final) 

 
To discuss annual report and feedback any 
recommendations 
 
Final report and recommendations of the T&F Panel 
 
Final report and recommendations of the T&F Panel 
 

 

* Please note that these items are statutory requirements for scrutiny by local authorities.  
 

Members of the Committee can, during the course of the year, add items within 
the remit of the Committee that they wish to be considered and discussed. 

  

 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Action Status Report
	6 COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2024/25

